
 

OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that the Personnel Committee of the City of Stoughton, 

Wisconsin will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and 

location given below. 

 
Meeting of the: 
Date /Time: 
Location: 

Members: 

Personnel Committee of the City of Stoughton 

Monday, September 12, 2016 @ 6:00 pm. 

Mayor’s Office (381 E Main St, Stoughton WI 53589)  

Pat O’Conner (Chair), Thomas Majewski (Vice-Chair), Sid Boersma, Paul Lawrence, and 

Mayor Donna Olson (ex-officio member) 

 

 

 

 
 

1 Call to Order 
 

2 Approval of the August 22, 2016 Personnel Committee meeting minutes 
 

3 Communications 
 

4 Review and possible action regarding the budgetary numbers requested at the July 25
th
 meeting for 

the pay plan 
 

5 Review and possible action regarding moving Human Resources & Risk Management 
Generalist position to full time 

 

6 Review and possible action regarding changes to City Work Rules 
 

7 Review and possible action regarding Union Contract proposal 
 

8 Future Agenda Items 
 

 Additional Position Descriptions from Springsted  
 

9 Adjournment 
 
 

 
 
If you are disabled and in need of assistance, please call 873-6677 prior to this meeting.  
 
NOTE:  AN EXPANDED MEETING MAY CONSTITUTE A QUORUM OF THE COUNCIL. 
 
Note: For security reasons, the front door of the City Hall Building will be locked after 4:30 p.m.  If you need to enter City 
Hall after that time, please use the Fifth Street entrances. 





 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that the Personnel Committee of the City of Stoughton, 


Wisconsin will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and 


location given below. 


 
Meeting of the: 
Date /Time: 
Location: 


Members: 


Personnel Committee of the City of Stoughton 


Monday, September 12, 2016 @ 6:00 pm. 


Mayor’s Office (381 E Main St, Stoughton WI 53589)  


Pat O’Conner (Chair), Thomas Majewski (Vice-Chair), Sid Boersma, Paul Lawrence, and 


Mayor Donna Olson (ex-officio member) 


 


 


 


 
 


1 Call to Order 
 


2 Approval of the August 22, 2016 Personnel Committee meeting minutes 
 


3 Communications 
 


4 Review and possible action regarding the budgetary numbers requested at the July 25
th
 meeting for 


the pay plan 
 


5 Review and possible action regarding moving Human Resources & Risk Management 
Generalist position to full time 


 


6 Review and possible action regarding changes to City Work Rules 
 


7 Review and possible action regarding Union Contract proposal 
 


8 Future Agenda Items 
 


 Additional Position Descriptions from Springsted  
 


9 Adjournment 
 
 


 
 
If you are disabled and in need of assistance, please call 873-6677 prior to this meeting.  
 
NOTE:  AN EXPANDED MEETING MAY CONSTITUTE A QUORUM OF THE COUNCIL. 
 
Note: For security reasons, the front door of the City Hall Building will be locked after 4:30 p.m.  If you need to enter City 
Hall after that time, please use the Fifth Street entrances. 








PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES  
Monday, August 22, 2016 @ 4:07pm 
Mayor’s Office  
 
Present: Alders:   Pat O’Connor, Thomas Majewski, Paul Lawrence via conference call, Tim Swadley    
(ex-officio), Director Gillingham 
 
Others in attendance:  Director Brehm 
  


1. CALL TO ORDER:  O’Connor called the meeting to order at 4:07pm.  
 


2. Approval of the Minutes of the July 25, 2016 Personnel Committee meeting minutes. Motion by 
Lawrence, second by Majewski. Approved 3-0 


3. Director Gillingham gave a Human Resources & Risk Management update: recruiting for the 
Utilities Customer Service position due to Rebecca Jacobson’s departure; recruiting for the 
Deputy Treasurer position being vacated by Julie Roberts who has taken a position with the 
State; recruiting for the Senior Center Case Worker position being vacated by Rebecca Kelly; will 
start recruiting as soon as possible for the Event Coordinator position vacated by Christina 
Dollhausen who is moving and explained that some changes have been made to update the 
position which she will be discussing later; an offer was extended on the Parks position of Parks 
Maintenance Supervisor which was declined so today an offer was made to Patrick Groom.  
 


4. Director Gillingham referred everyone to the memo dated 8-11-2016. She noted the newly 
created position of Opera House - House Manager which is a position created with the duties 
from Event Coordinator as well as some new responsibilities. She stated that this position along 
with the Assistant Event Coordinator which has been updated to Box Office Manager and 
Volunteer Coordinator have both been recently graded by Springsted. Director Gillingham then 
asked Director Brehm to further explain the changes and what they would mean to the City.  
Director Brehm asked the committee to turn their attention to the spreadsheet he had provided 
that shows the new structure of the Opera House Department. Brehm stated that while 
unfortunate, Christina’s departure did create the opportunity to make the changes that are 
needed to sustain the Opera House for the next few years. Director Gillingham stated that the 
organization chart shows which direction Brehm needs to go. Swadley asked if this restructure 
was a something he would have planned anyway. Brehm answered yes, that this has been a 
three year process. Lawrence asked what the financial impact to the City would be for both 
positions. Director Brehm stated that based on his analysis of his 2016-2017 budget, the Opera 
House is able to cover all additional costs without any extra funding from the City. He explained 
his methodology: By not hiring for Christina’s position at the same rate but at a lower rate and 
having her position vacant for a time frees up extra money. Plus, Julia is taking single benefits 
whereas Christina was taking family benefits. This made it possible to give a small increase in 
wages to Julia. Director Brehm explained that the Opera House has seen greater profit and is 
able to support any cost incurred by the change in wages for these positions.  Lawrence asked if 
there were extra duties along with the wage increase. Director Brehm stated there were. 
Majewski asked where the Opera House gets the revenue. Brehm stated that it comes through 
ticket sales, subsidies, and memberships. O’Conner asked what the City’s contribution is to 
which Director Brehm replied that it is $143,506 in 2016, was $160,321 in 2017 contingent on 
Brehm being 75% Opera House and 25% Media. O’Conner stated that HR will have to recruit for 
the House Manager position and asked about Julia’s position. Director Gillingham stated that 
Julia can be moved into the position because of the new promotion policy. O’Conner asked if 
the matter had to be taken to Finance to which Director Gillingham replied it does not because 
there is no financial impact to the City.  


 
 







Motion to move forward by Majewski, second by Lawrence, All in Favor (3-0).  


Director Gillingham stated that the next Personnel Committee meeting will be scheduled for September 12 due 


to the Labor Day holiday on September 5th.   


 
ADJOURNMENT 


Motion to adjourn by Lawrence, second by Majewski, All in Favor (3-0). Meeting adjourned at 4:30pm. 








City of Stoughton     Amy Jo Gillingham 


   Department of      Director 


Human Resources & Risk Management 
381 East Main Street  Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


(608) 646-0272 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us  


 


 
September 2, 2016 


 


To:  Mayor Olson 


 Personnel Committee 


 


Re: 2017 Budget Request 


 


 


This memo provides the required information regarding my request to move the HR/RM Generalist 


position from 30 hours/week to 40 hours.  With the departure of the deputy Treasurer and the promotion 


of Lisa Aide to that position we have approximately $9151 in excess wages available.  Therefore, I am 


asking to move the HR/RM Generalist to full time.  I have met with both the Finance Director and the 


Mayor who support this request.   The HR /RM Generalist wages and benefits would be covered for the 


remainder of 2016 with an excess of $2496.  In 2017 we would need and additional $10K in funding to 


continue her as a full time employee.  This includes benefits, WRS and FICA    


 


Offer # 04-09 (Personnel) and Offer # 04-11 (Risk Management) are both affected by the request to 


increase the hours to 40 hours/week for the HR/RM Generalist position.  The HR/RM Generalist has 


elected City Insurances therefore the additional cost including hourly wage and benefits is limited to 


$10,000 total.    


 


I have reviewed the numbers and by moving Lisa (Accounting Specialist) to deputy Treasurer 


and starting the replacement for Lisa at or around minimum ( $17.32)  we would have 


approximately $9151+ in excess wages, not including the weeks we have no wage cost as we  


are recruiting. Here’s what I have come up with…. 


Moving Gini to 40 Hours/Week 


17 weeks remaining in the year with an additional 17.5 Hours per week.  Grand total of 297.50 


additional Hours for 2016.   


297.50 X $16.69= 4965.28 additional wages for 2016 


FICA additional (7.65%) = 411.30 


WRS additional (6.6%split) 350.87 







Medical additional (303.38 city currently pays, @ 40 city would pay $523.17)=$219.79 add’ l 


monthly X 4 remaining months=$ 879.16 add’ l cost for 2016 


Dental additional (15.47 city currently pays, @ 40 city would pay $27.50) = $12.03 add’ l 


monthly X 4 remaining months=$48.12 add’ l cost for 2016 


 


Total cost to go from 22.5 to 40= $6654.73 for the remainder of 2016 – 100% covered by 


salary excess of $9151 


***Total additional cost at 40 hours for 2017= $10K*** 


 


The HR/RM Department continues to be unable to meet the needs of the City due to workload and lack of 


manpower.  I have been told every year by the Mayor that I will get additional help and it doesn’t happen. 


Below are the recommended staffing levels for an HR only department.  Please keep in mind we handle 


both HR & Risk Management with significantly less staff than recommended for HR only.      


 


Average HR-to-Employee Ratio, by Organization Size  


Fewer than 100            2.70 


100 to 249                     1.26  Note this number does not include the Director of HR/RM- just the 


HR Generalists 


250 to 499                     1.07 


500 to 999                    0.82 


1,000 to 2,499              0.79 


2,500 to 7,499              0.53 


7,500 or more              0.42 


Source: SHRM Human Capital Benchmarking Study 


 


 What's the Ideal HR-to-Staff Ratio? 


Comments from participants in our HR Specialist Weekly forum: 


1. "I think a good ratio is one HR employee to every 100 employees. After 100, it starts to 


get a little more difficult to keep on top of things." —Casey, Michigan 


NOTE: Gini and I handle both HR and Risk Management.  This calculation does not take into 


consideration the staffing required to handle the Risk Management tasks such as liability claims 


and worker’s compensation along with all of the other RM tasks such as MSDS, training and 


training records, hearing conservation.   


 







We do not have enough hours available to meet all of the compliance requirements such as I-9 removal 


from files and separated, medical removed and setup in new files, changes to comply with the MSDS 


changes. Management of worker’s compensation cases takes time and is absolutely necessary as we are 


able, in HR/RM to directly affect the modification factor and costs incurred with a case.  This is a very 


important responsibility that we do not have adequate staff to handle appropriately.   


   


 


We have a long list of to do’s that we have been unable to complete as we do not have enough available 


hours.  Therefore, we prioritize and work only on the critical day to day items.   


 


Future projects (this is just a small portion of our list)  


The additional support would allow us the necessary manpower to: 


 Implement neo-gov and Biddle 100% 


 Correct medical and p.files 


 Complete EEO entry 


 Begin employee recruitment on line 


 Performance review process-develop training and implement 


 Full Risk Assessment & Inventory  


 Move to paperless pay vouchers 


 Load the personnel file information into the HR System 


 Roll out the BS&A Employee Self Service (ESS) 


 Move to paperless on line employee files 


 Through ESS- roll out benefit elections   


 MSDS- compliance, onsite audits & training 


 WC- education and evaluations 


 Take action and follow-thru on the onsite audit feedback 


 Inventory- film for carrier & verification 


 New programs and services-research and rollout 


 


 In 2016, as of mid-July we had a total of 535 employees, volunteers and elected officials loaded into our 


system.  Full Time=80, Part Time=49, LTE/Seasonal=227 ,Temporary=5 , Volunteers=103, 20 elected 


officials and 48 with no type.    


 


 


We also hired 42 employees Jan 2015- Mid August 2015.  The Full Time, Part Time and LTE/Seasonal 


Employees are all touched by Human Resources through recruiting, new hire orientation, benefits 


education and election/registration and being setup in payroll.  This number continues to grow as the 


economy shifts and turn over begins to increase.  We also have terminations which require cessation of 


benefits, possibly COBRA and system updates.  We also have changes to complete in the system and with 


the carriers with marriages, birth of a child, election changes etc…  WC & PNC has also kept us busy 


with reporting accidents and incidents as well as case management.   


 


 







 


 


With the addition of 17.50 hours per week, spread between both HR & Risk Management, the HR & RM 


Department will be able to provide the services necessary to drive down costs through the lines of 


insurance, provide a safer work environment, utilize the computer system and stream line processes,  


better educate employees and provide an environment including benefits that retains employees.    


 


 


 


 


 


 


Regards, 


 


 
 


Amy Jo Gillingham        


Director of Human Resources & Risk Management 








IV. LEAVES OF ABSENCE  
Funeral Leave  
Each full-time or permanent part-time employee shall be entitled to up to three (3) days off 
with regular pay when there is a death in his/her family. This time shall not be charged to 
sick, comp or vacation balances. For purposes of this provision, immediate family means 
the employee’s: spouse, children, mother, father, grandfather, grandmother, stepparent, 
aunts, uncles, foster parents, stepchildren, grandchildren, foster children, brothers and their 
spouses and children, and sisters and their spouses and children. Immediate family shall 
also include the following relatives of the employee’s spouse: mother, father, child, 
grandmother, grandfather, brothers and sisters. Additional time that may be necessary in 
certain instances may be taken by the employee and those days charged to his/her sick 
leave, comp or vacation time if the employee so desires. Funeral or pall bearer (other than 
immediate family) – maximum of four (4) hours to attend. This leave must be approved by 
the Department Head or Mayor for the Department Heads and either charged against 
accrued sick, comp or vacation leave or taken as leave without pay at the option of the 
employee.  
 
Vacation  
All full-time and permanent part-time employees shall be granted vacation with pay as 
follows, credited to the employee on the first of January each year:  


 1 week - after 1 full year of service, but less than 2 years of service  


 2 weeks - after 2 full years of service, but less than 6 full years of service  


 3 weeks - after 6 full years of service  


 4 weeks - after 10 full years of service; and one additional day of vacation for each 
additional year of service thereafter until reaching a maximum of 5 weeks.  


 
For purposes of this section, a vacation week will consist of the employee’s normally 
scheduled hours. Example: If an employee’s normal work week consists of 20 hours, one 
week of vacation will consist of 20 hours; or if the employee’s normal work week consists of 
25 hours, one week of vacation will consist of 25 hours. For purposes of this section, a 
vacation week will consist of the employee’s normally scheduled hours. Example: If an 
employee’s normal work week consists of 20 hours, one week of vacation will consist of 20 
hours; or if the employee’s normal work week consists of 25 hours, one week of vacation 
will consist of 25 hours.  
Computation of benefits when a full time employee goes to part time is as follows:  
No loss of longevity. (i.e. If the employee was entitled to five weeks’ vacation at full time 
hours – 40 hours per week; the employee would be entitled to five weeks’ vacation at part 
time hours, i.e. 20 hour week or 25 hour week, based on normally scheduled work hours.)  
Computation of benefits when a part time employee goes to full time is as follows: No 
loss of longevity, but equivalency would be calculated. Vacation would be computed at full 
time hours. (i.e. If the employee has worked 10 years at 20 hours per week, this would 
equal 5 years of full time.  
Vacation leave is not cumulative and employees must take their vacation by the end of the 
year credited, except that the Department Head and Mayor may allow earned vacation time 
to accumulate if an employee obtains prior consent and it is determined to be in the best 
interest of the City.  
A tentative vacation leave schedule for all employees must be submitted to the Department 
Head by February 15th.  
All vacation requests must be approved by the Department Head or their designee in 
advance.  







Eligible employees who terminate employment for any reason will receive a pro-rated 
vacation benefit. The following procedure should be used when determining pro-rated 
vacations:  


 Employees that were hired before 1973 had vacations pro-rated when they started. 
On January 1 following their hire date, they received a pro-rated number of hours of 
the basic 40 allowed.  


 
Example: Employee started July 1. On January 1 we would divide the day of the year, 182, 
by 365 days, times 40 hours. That would equal 20 hours earned in year hired, credited and 
used after January 1 the following year.  
For each additional week eligible for, the same procedure would be followed.  
When you quit or retire, your vacation earned and credited on January 1 is 100% payable. If 
employee works past the first of the year, the pro-rated amount earned would also be 
payable. The procedure for pro-rating is the number of days worked past January 1, divided 
by 365, multiply by the number of hours of vacation allowed per year.  


 Employees hired after January 1,1973, receive 40 hours vacation on the first of 
January following date hired.  


 
Example: New employee started July 1, 1982, 40 hours vacation would be available to him 
on January 1, 1983. If employee quits or retires, pro-ration would be done from anniversary 
date to date of termination. 18  Employee worked 60 days past anniversary date. 60 days 
divided by 365 days times 40 hours equals 6.4 hours payable to employee.  
If employee terminates 60 days prior to anniversary date, the same amount would be deducted from 
final check if vacation had already been used. 
 
Vacation time cannot be taken once notice of resignation, termination or retirement is rendered.  
 
Termination  
Voluntary termination is defined as an employee who for reasons of his/her own choosing 
elects not to continue in the employ of the City. Involuntary termination is defined as the 
City, for its own reasons, informing an employee in writing, that his/her services are no 
longer required. An employee who terminates should leave a forwarding address with the 
City Clerk/Personnel Director so W2’s can be mailed at the end of the year. Written notice 
of voluntary termination should be given to the Department Head with as much notice as 
practicable (2 weeks suggested/requested).  
Terminated employees must return ID cards, keys, and all provided personal protective 
equipment, training materials, and other provided materials to the City upon termination. 
Failure to do so will cause the employee to be billed for these items and for costs 
associated with security and other operational changes. Terminated employees will also be 
responsible for paying all bills associated with any City-sponsored plans (i.e. cell phone 
plans, fuel plans, etc.).  
Employees, when terminated from City employment, will be compensated at their current pay rate 
for earned and unused vacation accumulated and any compensation due to their credit on the next 
regularly scheduled payday. Sick time is not paid out at termination.  Sick time for retiree’s see 
retiree payout information in the Accrued Sick Leave Credit for Retiring Employee Section.   The 
termination date is defined as the employee’s last day worked.  The termination date cannot be a 
vacation, sick or compensatory day.  The employee must physically work their last day in order for 
benefits to be extended through the end of the month in which they work.   
 
 

































































































